
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Dr. Albert G. Roberts, Superintendent of Schools 
 
FROM: Therese M. O’Neill, Assistant Superintendent for Finance & Operations 
                       
RE: Budget Update – 2013-14 End of Year and Proposed 2014-15  
 
DATE:  August 19, 2014 
 
 
 
At the June 24, 2014 meeting, I presented the Board with a preliminary assessment of where I 
believed we would close out the 2013-14 school year and since that time have updated that 
information.  Attached is a summary, by fund, of unaudited revenues received and expenditures 
incurred through the 2013-14 along with spreadsheets (one for revenues and one for expenditures) 
that delineate, by fund, and major category what was originally presented at the June 24, 2014 
meeting and actuals received/expended since the close of the District’s books for the 2013-14 school 
year. 
 
Overall, our operating revenues were budgeted at $77,825,059 and our non-operating revenues were 
budgeted at $8,486,303.  As of June 30, 2014, our operating revenues came in at $78,102,759 or 
$277,700 more than our conservatively built revenue projections.  This is primarily due to state 
revenues coming a little stronger than those conservatively-built receipts.  Our non-operating 
revenues, as of June 30, 2014, came in at $9,085,396 or $599,093 more than budgeted.  The 
preponderance of these additional dollars is primarily due to the Debt Service Fund and timing of 
bond receipts, along with the 5% loss factor applied by the county.  We also were in receipt of a 
$49,000 grant, not anticipated at the time the budget was adopted, associated with our accessibility 
work undertaken this summer. 
 
The District’s operating revenues were 0.35% greater than budgeted and our operating expenditures 
were 3.8% less than budgeted.  The primary reasons for this underspending are attributed to the 
following: 
 

 The Education Fund – Salaries – were over-stated by $735,000 and when this  
amount is subtracted from our budgeted salaries, our overall Education Fund 
salaries total 99.6% of budget. 
 

 Fringe Benefits appears to be somewhat over-stated. However, because of some 
unfilled grant positions, later filled positions, and adjustments for insurance, TRS 
payments, etc. some of the under-expending may not be an over-statement but 
more due to pro-rations. 
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 Purchased Services – under-expended by $419,533  due to multiple expenditure lines 
within this category previously delineated my June 24, 2014 memo. 
 

 Capital Outlay was under-spent by $523,585 which is the direct result of not imple- 
menting the VoIP system ($220,000), ADA accessibility work ($200,000),  the 
district holding line for classroom furniture (under-spent by $40,000), and the re- 
mainder of smaller amounts from various budget lines. 
 

 Tuition was under-spent by $446,221. 
 

 Operations & Maintenance Fund, however, was over-spent both in terms of salary  
($197,230) and heating ($224,338) due to the entire state experiencing 
 the “polar vortex”.  This over-expenditure is the first time in the last six years the 
O & M Fund came in over budget. 

 
In terms of 2014-15, attached is a summary document, along with a spreadsheet, supported by 
general ledger pages, for both revenues and expenditures, delineating budgeted 2013-14 
revenues/expenditures, actual 2013-14 receipts/expenditures, and proposed 2014-15 
revenues/expenditures. 
 
For 2014-15, the attached summary, by fund, indicates that our operating revenues will be 
$76,177,464 and expenditures will be $77,868,155.  Our operating revenues represent 2.2% less 
than budgeted for 2013-14 and 2.5% less than actually received for 2013-14.  This is primarily due to 
our anticipated borrowing ($1,041,000 rather than $3,086,000).   
 
Our operating expenditures for 2014-15 are presented as $77,868,155 or 3.8% more ($2,982,099) 
than budgeted for 2013-14 and 8.1% greater than actually expended in 2013-14.  While we anticipate 
an 8.1% increase in the expected expenditures for the 2014-15 school year, we have a strong history 
of under-spending our annual budget while still meeting the needs of all our students.  This has been 
and continues to be reflected in the various cost efficiencies and sound fiscal management we have 
exercised over these past six years.  Some of the reasons for this projected 8.1% increase include: 
 

 Carry-over of some budgeted, but not incurred, endeavors from 2013-14: 
1. VoIP system - $220,000 
2. Amended IDEA accessibility line - $139,000 
3. Medicaid - $186,000 
4. Under-spent IDEA, Title I and other grant initiatives which will occur 

in 2014-15 with carry-over dollars. 
 Inclusion of all collective bargaining agreements 
 11 new staffing positions ($770,000) 
 6% increase in health insurance costs 
 2.5% increase (Purchased Services & Supplies and Materials) 
 New Initiatives 

1. Alio Conversion ($120,000) 
2. District Reorganization ($611,000) 
3. Rosetta Stone (Foreign Language) - $132,000 
4. Math Textbook Adoption - $405,000 
5. HR Software - $25,500 
6. UIC Math Consultant - $50,000 

 



 
 
 
 
The summary has all funds balanced with the exception of the Operations & Maintenance Fund and, 
in working with Steve Miller on Thursday, August 14, 2014, I was able to adjust our forthcoming 
December 2014 levy to lessen some dollars from our Transportation, Social Security & IMRF levy, 
without to assist with the Operations & Maintenance Fund; however, even with this, I cannot erase 
the deficit.  I am going to suggest that the Board allocate an additional $400,000 from the annual GSA 
allotment of $2,000,000 as well as $300,000 of its CPPR taxes to the Operations & Maintenance 
Fund to balance this fund for the 2014-15 school year. 
 
The second fund that is not balanced is the Capital Projects Fund.  As you will recall, the Board chose 
to undertake the Whittier accessibility project, along with minor accessibility projects at Beye, Irving 
and Mann, with anticipated Madison Street TIF dollars ($1,988,249) which has caused this fund to go 
into a deficit position.  Upon receipt of those dollars and our annual DSEB borrowing, these projects 
as well as anticipated summer 2015 projects will be funded and this fund should be back in balance.  
Elizabeth Hennessy from William Blair has prepared two recommendations for the Board to consider 
in terms of its annual DSEB borrowing and Ms. Hennessy will be at our meeting on September 9, 
2014 to share options.  FORC did discuss this at its meeting on Monday, August 11, 2014 and the 
two Board members on FORC, Graham Brisben and Peter Traczyk, may speak to this Tuesday 
evening. 
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